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- FOUNDATION OF CONDURIL -

mmmmm CONSTRUTORA DURIENSE, LDA.

ACQUISITION BY THE CURRENT
MAIN SHAREHOLDERS

control

A TRANSFORMATION IN
S.A.R.L. (COMPANY
LIMITED BY SHARES)

The company was dedicated to small road works

CREATION OF THE LCC- CONDURIL'S

“ _
CENTRAL LABORATORY

Innovative internal system for quality



BEGINNING OF THE
EXPANSION TO FOREIGN
MARKETS

Angola, Mozambique, Morocco,

Bofswana, Senegal, Cape Verde,
Malawi, Zambia and Gabon

- ADMISSION TO TRADING
| AT THE STOCK EXCHANGE

9™ BEST PORTUGUESE COMPANY
Among companies of all industries
Best Company Award, from
Didrio de Noficias (newspaper)
COMPANY OF THE YEAR
(Exame magazine)
A A CHANGE OF THE LEGAL NAME TO
“CONDURIL - ENGENHARIA, S.A."
In order fo improve the perception of
its current performance and operation

200812009 1201012014

CONSIDERED THE “BEST COMPANY
OF THE CONSTRUCTION SECTOR"
(Exame magazine)
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CONDURIL

Conduril - Engenharia, S.A. is a company limited by
shares founded in 1959. In its 60 years of life, the company
has exclusively developed ifs activity in the field of civil
engineering.

Currently, the Company has more than 1800 employees
that perform their duties in 8 countries, with its decision
cenfre located in Porfugal (Company's head office)
and its operatfional coordination for Southern Africa
cenfralised in Angola.

The Conduril's management bodies have the
following structure:

Crisbstomo Aquino de Barros (President)
Amadeu Augusto Vinhas
Filipa Bastos Pinho Ferreira Lemos

Antonio Luis Amorim Martins (President)
Maria Benedita Andrade de Amorim Martfins
Maria Luisa Andrade Amorim Marfins
Antonio Baragas Andrade Miragaia

Anténio Emanuel Lemos Catarino

Jorge Lucio Teixeira de Castfro

Miguel José Alves Monfenegro de Andrade
Ricardo Nuno Arautjo Abreu Vaz Guimardes

Maria Benedita Andrade de Amorim Marrtins (CEO)
Maria Luisa Andrade Amorim Martins (Vice-CEO and CFO)
Antonio Baragas Andrade Miragaia

Anfénio Emanuel Lemos Catarino

Jorge Lucio Teixeira de Castfro

Miguel José Alves Monfenegro de Andrade

Ricardo Nuno Arautjo Abreu Vaz Guimardes

Ademar Américo Soares Paiva (President)

JUlio Gales Ferreira Pinto

Maria de Lourdes Lopes Chaves

JoBo Ricardo Aradjo Monteiro Rocha (Altfernate)

Horwath & Associados, SROC, Lda.
Representada por Ana Raquel B. L. Esperanca Sismeiro
JoGio Miguel Neiva de Oliveira Coelho Pires (Alfernate)
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CONDURIL,: ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE OVERVIEW:
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FINANCIAL COORDINATION

PORTUGAL
(HEAD
° ®  OFFICE) AND
SOUTHERN THE COUNTRIES

AFRICA OUTSIDE
COORDINATION SOUTHERN

AFRICA
COORDINATION

The general coordination and, particularly, the executive coordination are based on cohesion, consistency, merifocracy,
loyalty, rigour, ethics and culfure. These values are focused on four principles: honesty, fransparency, justice and a strict

adherence fo the rules and regulations.

| | l

SOUTHERN AFRICA ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL PORTUGAL AND THE COUNTRIES
OPERATIONAL COORDINATION GENERAL OPERATIONAL OUTSIDE SOUTHERN AFRICA
COORDINATION OPERATIONAL COORDINATION
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The global real output grew 3 percentage points in 2017
and a similar increase is expected in 2018. Nevertheless,
this dynamic is not clearly evidenced in the civil engineering
sector, where the levels of activity are very distant from those
in the pre-financial crisis period.

In Portugal, according fo the Bank of Porfugal data, the
domestic product gap is close fo zero. Driven by the growth
of the last 4 years, most sectors of the economy are closer
fo their maximum use of production capacity. However,
this optimistic scenario was not evenly disfributed across
every sector: civil engineering and public works register a
much slower recovery, aggravated, in part, by the low rafe
of execution of investments foreseen in the government
programme “Portugal 2020".

In Angola, the increasing external debt, the high inflation,
/\/\ AN AGE /\/\ E NT the widening of the frade deficit and the extremely
significant devaluation of Kwanza are factors that confribute
fo the evidenced instability. Taking info account these

R E PQ RT constraints, it is expected that the real output had a slight
contraction in 2018.
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Portugal

In Mozambique, a greater economic stability compared

fo the last two years was verified. Although itis conjectured 8.0%
that GDP will mainfain a growing frend lower than the one 7.0%
verified during the last decade, two-figure growth ratfes 6.0%

are expected as of 2023. 50%
4.0%
In Zambia, the domestic product had a growth rafe close zz:
t0 4% in 2018. The construction sector is one of the main 1:0% .
drivers of this increase. However, a growing dependence 0.0% I_

onfinancing from Chinais verified, creating a supremacy 1.0%

of Chinese companies. The high public debtis one of the -2.0%

rnain constraints fo Zambia's development. 0% romaol Avole Mombave  Zambo  maow  Gason
In Malawi, although the real output has grown in the Wz00206  W207 W20

last years in a rate higher than 3 percentage points, the Source: IMF - Infernafional Monefary Fund

income per capita remains low (less than 350 euros).

Agriculture is still assumed as one of the main economic

activities and the main investments in infrastructures are 20%

subject to the obtainment of external funding. 10% -

0% - - | . I
In 2018, in Galbon, the dissolution of the parliament by 0% I I_I I - 1

the Constitutional Court and the appointment of new zz:

members of parliament fook place. With this change, 0%

a decrease in the political instability experienced since -50%

2016 and the duplication of the growth rate of domestic -60%

product of 2%, in 2018, close to 4%, in 2019, is expected. USDAEUR - AKZER - MENEUR - ZMWER - MWIER
W 2015-2016 1 2016-2017 W 2017-2018

Sources: Central banks of Portugal, Angola, Mozambique, Zambia and Malawi
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For 2019, the mainfenance of the growth ratfe of the world
economy close o 3% is expected, however, this optimistic
scenario is subject fo macroeconomic swings, espedally,
regarding the operation of the market of infernational
fransactions, the reinforcement and maintenance of
international agreements and the evolution of geopolitical
fensions, with particular emphasis in:

the increase in the price of commmaodiities, especially oil;

the currency fluctuation, which will be strongly restricted
by the evolution of the American Dollar, due fo domestic
policy issues;

the reinforcement of projects funded by infernational
organisationsfor the developmentof basicinfrastructures
inemerging countries;

the increase of investment in countries where elections
will fake place, such as Portugal;

the sfrengthening of the fight against high inflafion rates,
efc.

Turnover reached a value dose o 120 million euros,
which represents a reduction of 15%, in comparison fo the
previous year.

The turnover outside Porfugal represents approximartely
77% of its sum, since the activity in national territory is
well below the expected, due fo uncerfainties in projects
already awarded and delays in the implementation of the
investrment plan set for the period 2014 to 2020.

The main projects mentioned in the previous report are
still in course and a contract for the construction of the IP5
section between Vilar Formoso and the Spanish border
was signed. The consfruction of the largest suspended
pedestrion bridge in the world (Arouca, Porfugal); the
stabilisation of slopes in the frain lines of Douro, Norfe and
Beira Baixa (Portugal); the execution of infrastructures
for the new urban centre of Sumbe for the client Kora
(Angola); and the rehabilitation of 3 irrigation systems, the
consfruction of infrastructures for the Galp il ferminal in
Beira and the construction of 3 bridges in Cabo Delgado
for the employer Konoike (Mozambique), have started.

The main indicators confinue to show the economic and
financial soundness of the Company, despite the serious
constraints that have penalised the furnover and the net
income, as evidenced by the following table:

il

INDICATORS

Net assets (€)
Liabilities (€)

Equity (€)

Gross debt (€)®
Net debt (€)@
Turnover (€)

EBITDA (€)

Net income for the period (€)
Financial autonomy
General liquidity
Solvency ratio

Debt ratio

Sales profitability
Gross debt/EBITDA
EBITDA/Turnover

VRN

2017

456,017,167
238,188,307
217,828,860

114,437,885
-32,045,329
140,460,967

33,358,782

7,006,696

48%
170%
91%
109%
5%
3.43
24%

Angola

2018

370,596,384
158,164,579
212,431,805

47,384,213
-19,124,841
119,700,251
25,185,566
3,045,198
57%
199%
134%
74%

3%
1.88
21%

(the gross delot presented corresponds 1o the surn of all bank
loans contracted by the Company.
@the net debt represents the difference between the gross debt
and the resources or equivalent of the Company.

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018



The investment policy adopted by the Company
presents high flexibility, allowing a quick adjustment fo the
market conditions.

Therefore, the main investments made in 2018 focused on
fwo core areas: fixed assefts and human capital.

In terms of fixed assefs, several basic and transport
equipment were renovated and reinforced. Also, the
construction of the new head office building of the Angola
branch “Mefamorphosis” was concluded. The project
of this building was one of the finalists in the mixed-use
category of the "World Architecture Festival 2018" event.

The investrment made in Human Capital is a reflection of
Conduril's corporate social responsibility, based on the
following grounds:

- training promotion: in 2018, more than 21,500 fraining
hours were registered, 81% which were provided af the
Conduril Academy. In Angola, the Conduril Academy
implemented a selection projectto award 10 scholarships
funded by the Company, and the possible extension of
this project fo Mozambique in 2019 is being studied.

- protfection of employees: through health, assistance and
fravelinsurance policies, which include all the employees
that meet the criteria established by Management.

- addifional finandial complement fo workers in the
refirement period: the Conduril Pension Fund, 100%
funded by ifs own resources and which presents a current
amountthatexceeds 9 millioneuros, ensured this principle.

The focus on the satisfaction of all stakeholders
faithfully reflects Conduril's behaviour and all the
procedures adopted. The complionce and consistency
of ifs processes have been recognised, year affer year, by
the competent and autonomous external entities, being
translated in 2018 into:

- the folow-up, mainfenance and extension by APCER
(Portuguese Association of Certification) of the certification

of the quality management systfemin Porfugal and in Edirio,
the revalidation in the Angola branch, in Métis and Urano,
and the new granting in the Mozambique delegation and
in ENOP, according to the standard NP ENISO Q00T1:2015;

- the renewal and extension by APCER of the certification

in the scope of the occupational health and safety
nmanagement system in Portugal, in Ediirio, in the Angola
ranch, in Métis and Urano, and the new granting in the
Mozambique delegation and in ENOP, according fo the
standards OHSAS 18001:2007 and NP 4397:2008;

-mIGN
apcer,  itiet
;:‘,s

- the follow-up, maintenance and extension by APCER

of the cerfification of the environmental management
systern in Porfugal and in Edirio, according fo the
standard NP EN SO 14001:2015;

{cer § IONet
no“

- fthe follow-up of the accreditation by IPAC (Porfuguese

Institute for Accreditation) for the Portuguese Central
Laboratory, according to the standard NP EN ISO/IEC

17025:2005; and

«rnﬂrasw

SL29
Crvaaien

- the certification obtained in the scope of the EC Marking

for the metal sfructures produced in Edirio, according fo
the standard EN 1090+1:2009+A1:2011.

C€
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The adverse causes that have contributed fo the
deterioration of the construction secfor and which have
faken many companies of this sector to practice a policy
of excessively low pricing are faced as a challenge, since
Conduril always fries fo be competitive, maintaining the
quality standards for which it is highly recognised. Af
the same time, these are seen as an opportunity, since
these standards are assumed as a great differentiating
element.

For 2019, the Company expects a volume of business and
income higher than the one verified in 2018.

The current porffolio of works in execution amounts
approximately to 300 million euros, with good
perspectives of its reinforcement in the short ferm.

The expansion fo new markets confinues fo be on
Conduril's agenda, although limited fo projects with high
strategic and financial interest.

Other information:
Conduril has branches in Angola, Mozambique,

Botswana, Cape Verde, Zambia, Malawi, Gabon and
Morocco.

Malawi

There are no overdue debts fo the State or any other
public enfities, including the Social Security.

The share capital is fully subscribed and paid-in, and is
composed of 2,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of 5 euros each.

The 200,000 shares owned by the company were not
object of any fransaction during the year.

No change was verified regarding the number of
shares of CONDURIL - Engenharia, S.A. held by members
of the Board of Directors, throughout 2018.

Aware of the importance of the Company's stability
and economic and financial soundness and the
balance of its equity, the Board of Directors proposes,
in compliance with the legal and stafutory provisions,
that the net income for the period, in the amount of
3,045,198 euros, presents the following distribution:

- Dividends: 900,000 euros, corresponding fo 0.50
euros per share;

- Free Reserves: 2,145,198 euros.
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To end its report, the Board of Directors expresses
its strong gratfitude fo all those who cooperated in the
activity of Conduril, especially, the Company employees
for their coonmitrent and professionalism, and ifs clients,
suppliers, financial insfitutions and remaining members
of the management bodies for their cooperation and
understanding.

Ermesinde, 11 March 2019

The Board of Directors,

Portugal

Gabon
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 AND 201/

AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN EURO

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Property, plant and equipment 2;3;7 52,541,041 54,603,777
Intangible assets 2:3,6 5,255,226 5,280,122
Permanent participations (equity method) 3,9 8,122,906 12,441,923
Other financial investments 318 84,261,223 84,990,440
Deferred tax assets 3,17 - 103,713

I

CURRENT ASSET
Inventories 3;10 11,731,189 11,106,258
Clients 3,18 114,925,890 131,622,757
Clients with retention payments 3,18 2,937,428 5,454,928
State and other public bodies 20 13,341,737 12,306,994
Other accounts receivable 3,18;20 65,701,668 46,819,627
Deferrals 3,20 262,647 274,357
Financial assets held for frading 3,18 - 1944715
Other financial assets 3,18 - 83,041,539
Cash and bank deposits 34 1,515,429 6,026,017

storal f || 220,415989 298,597,191

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Paid-in capital 10,000,000 10,000,000
Own shares 3 (950,000) (950,000)
Legal reserves 3,044,492 3,044,492
Other reserves 200,713,581 196,406,885
Retained profit 453,463 214,819
Revaluation surpluses 2,708,790 2,947,434
Adjustments/Other changes in equity (6,583,719) (841,467)
]
Net income for the period 3,045,198 7,006,696
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 3 212,431,805 217,828,860
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 313 11,613,416 10,611,916
Financing obtained 3;8,18 34,554,042 50,848,697
Deferred tax liabilities 3,17 1,356,928 1,239,086
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade creditors 3 54,992,812 76,818,223
Advanced payments from clients 3 16,799,065 14,649,126
State and other public bodies 20 14,728,614 6,954,765
Financing obtained 3,8;18 12,830,171 63,589,188
Other accounts payable 3,20 10,066,490 10,963,846
Deferrals 3;11,20 1,223,041 2,513,460
I
ToTAL LIABILITIES ] B 8164579 || 238188307
The Management, The Chartered Accountant,
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 AND 201/

AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN EURO

Sales and services provided 3;12,20;21 119,700,251 140,460,967
Grants received as compensation for expenses - -
Gains/losses allocated o subsidiaries, associated companies 230

and joint ventures 769,219 (209108)
Variation of inventories in production 310 - (310,187)
Own work capitalised 3 1,540,773 7,573,200
Cost of goods sold and materials consumed 10 (25,889,647) (30,594,851)
External supplies and services 20 (49,603,854) (65,481,109)
Personnel expenses 3,19;20 (31,926,558) (36,270,207)
Impairment of inventories (losses/reversals) 3,10 (25,307) (56,899)
Impairment of doubtful debts (losses/reversals) 3;18 258,946 (28,266)
Provisions (increases/reductions) 313 (279,237) (305,807)
Impairment of non-depreciable/amortisable investments B B
(losses/reversals)
Increases/reductions of fair value 3,18 - -
Otherincome 14,20 22,644,716 33,187,736
Other expenses 2;14;20 (12,049,394) (14,997,659)
E—
Depreciation and amortisation expenses/reversals 3,67 (6,233,395) (8,893,478)
Impairment of depreciable/amortisable investments (losses/
reversals)

Net operating income (before financing costs and taxes) _ 18,906,573 24,074,331

Interests and similar income obtained - -

Interests and similar expenses supported (6,312,069) (11165,964)
Income taxes 3,17 (9,549,306) (5901,671)

Income of discontinued operations (net of tax) inc. in the net
income for the period

NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE:
Holders of equity of the parent entity 3,045,198 7,006,696
Non-controlling interests

The Management, The Chartered Accountant,
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 AND 201/

AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN EURO

“

OPERATING ACTIVITIES FLOW

Cash receipts from clients 166,463,034 134,394,789

Payments to suppliers (67,347937) (79,890,346)

Payments to employees (25,959,093) (29,464,256)
—

Payment/Receipt of income taxes (1,177,033) (2,337,577)

Other cash receipts/payments (12,339,831) 2,177,810

operaTNGAcTiviTESFLOW ) | | 59,639,141 24,880,419

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES FLOW
CASH PAYMENTS ARISING FROM:

Property, plant and equipment (590,349) (8,778,798)
Intangible assets - -
Financial investments (12,241) (8,751)
Other assets -
CASH RECEIPTS ARISING FROM:
Property, plant and equipment - 17,673
Other assets 3;4,18 - -
Interest and similar income 2,440,141 2,992,947
Dividends 800,907 4,178,380
I
FINANCING ACTIVITIES FLOW
CASH RECEIPTS ARISING FROM:
Financing obtained 85,140,797 127,096,427

Capital increases and other equity instruments - -

Other financing operations -
CASH PAYMENTS ARISING FROM:

Financing obtained (131,647,417) (140,602,502)
Leasing financing (733,358) (1,141,320)
Interests and similar expenses (5,881,765) (9,881,063)
Dividends (2,700,000) (900,000)

Other financing operations -

FINANCING ACTIVITIES FLOW (3) (55,821,744) (25,428,458)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1 +2 + 3) 6,455,855 (2,146,588)

Effects of foreign exchange rate (966,444) (412,491)
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the period 6,026,017 8,585,096
The Management, The Chartered Accountant,
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS
Al 31 DECEMBER
2013

CONDURIL - Engenharia, S.A. ("CONDURIL" or
"Company”), is a company founded in 1959 and
transformed in a company limited by shares in 1976, with
registered office af Av. Eng.© Duarte Pacheco, 1835 - 4445-
416 Ermesinde - Valongo, Porfugal, whose main activity
is public constfruction works and all other works related to
the exerdise of this activity.

We believe that these finandial stafements are a frue and
proper representation of the Company's operations, as well
asifs finandal position and performance and cash flows.

The individual and consolidated financial statements are
filed in the Company's registered office.

All amounts expressed in these nofes are presented in
euros, rounded to the nearest unit.

2.1. These financial statements have been prepared
bearing in mind the confinuation of the Company’s
operations, from the accounting records of the
Company and in accordance with the rules of the
Accounting Standardisation System, governed by
the following legislation:

- Decree-law no. 158/2009, of 13 July, as amended
by Decree-law no. 98/2015, of 2 June (Accounting
Standardisation System);

- Decree Order no. 220/2015, of 24 July (Financial
Statements Models);

- Notice no. 8254/2015, of 29 July (Framework);

- Notice no. 8256/2015, of 29 July (Accounting Standards
and Financial Reporting);

- Decree Order no. 218/2015, of 23 July (Code of Accounts).

These financdial sfafements reflect only the individual
accounts of the Company, prepared in accordance with
the law. Although the financial investments have been
registered by the equity method, which is in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles, these
financial staferments do not include the effect of the full
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consolidation af the level of assefs, liabilities, income
and expenses. The Company prepares and presents
consolidated financial statements, separately.

2.2. Indication and comment on the balance sheet
and the income statement whose contents are not
comparable with those of the previous financial year:

The amounts presenfed for comparison purposes are
comparable and presented in accordance with the
model resulting from the amendments infroduced by the
legislation mentioned in the previous paragraph.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the attached financial statements are the
following:

3.1. Measurement bases used in the preparation of
the financial statements

The affached financial statements have lbeen prepared
bearing in mind the confinuation of the Company's
operations, from the accounting books and records
of the Company, maintained in accordance with the
Accounting Standards and Financial Reporfing (NCRF).

Intangible assets

The infangible assetfs, which essentially comprise
development rights and computer programmes, are
registered at acquisition cost, net of eventual impairment
losses and accumulated amortisation. These assefs are
writfen down from the moment in which the underlying
assefs are complefed or in use, by the sfraight-line
method, for a period of 60 and 3 years, respectively.

The infangible assefs are only recognised when it is
probable that they derive future economic lbenefits for the
Company, are controllable by the Company and that they
can be measured reliably.

The development costs for which the Company
demonstrates ability o complete their development
and sfart their marketing and/or use, and for which it is
probable that their creafed asset will generate future
economic benefifs, are capifalised. The development
costs that do not meet these criteria are registered as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

The gains or losses arising from the sale or write-off of
these assefs are defermined as the difference between
the sale price and the accounting netf value atf the date

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018

of sale/write-off, and are registered by the nef value in
the income sfatement, as "Otfher income” or "Other
expenses”.

Property, plant and equipment
The property, plant and equipment acquired up fo |
January 2009, are registered af their considered cost,
which corresponds to the acquisition cost or the revaluated
acquisition costin accordance with the generally accepted
principles in Portugal until that date, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The property, plant and equipment acquired affer
that date, are registered af acquisition cost, net of
the corresponding depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciations are calculated, affer the beginning of use
of the assets, by the straight-line method, on an annual
basis, according to the following esfimated useful lives:

Buildings and other constructions 10-25
Machinery and other equipment 3-16
Transport equipment 3-8
Office equipment 3-12
Other property, plant and equipment 3-10

Maintenance and repair costs, which do not increase the
useful life of these fixed assets are registered as expenses
inthe period in which they occur. The costs of major repairs
and renovations are included in the accounting value of
the asset whenever it is expected that this would involve
additional future economic benefits.

Property, plantand equipment in progress represent assets
stillinthe construction phase or in transit, and are registered
aracquisition cost net of eventual impairment losses. These
assefs are depreciated from the momentthey are in a state
of use.

The gains or losses arising from the sale or write-off of these
assefs are deftermined as the difference between the sale
price and the accounting nef value at the date of sale/
write-off, and are registered by the nef value in the income
statement, as “Other income” or "Other expenses”.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost
over the fair value of the identfifiable assets, liabilities and
confingent liabilifies of the subsidiaries af the datfe of
acquisition.

The differences befween the acquisition cost of
investments in subsidiaries and associated companies,
and the fair value of the identfifiable assefs and liabilities
of these companies at the date of their acquisition,



when negative, are recognised as income at the date
of acquisition, after reassessment of the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilifies.

Af the balance sheet date, an evaluation of the
recoverable amount of the net value of the goodwill is
made, and the respective impairment losses recognised
whenever the accounting value of goodwill exceeds its
recoverable amount. The gain or loss on disposal of an
entity includes the accounting value of goodwill related fo
the entity sold, unless the business to which that goodwill
is relafed is mainfained generafing benefits to the
Company. Impairment losses related fo goodwill cannot
e reversed.

Leases

Classification of leases as financial or operating is made
based on fthe sulbstance and nof on the form of the
confract. The lease agreements in which the Company
acts as lessee are classified as finance leases, if the risks
and rewards incident to ownership lie with the lessee, and
as operafing leases, if the risks and rewards incident fo
ownership do not lie with the lessee.

In accordance with the financial method, the cost of
the asset is registered as an asset, the corresponding
responsibility is registered as a liabllity, in the item
"Financing obtained”, and the inferests included in the
value of rentals and the assets reinfegration are registered
as costs in the income stafement for the concerning
period.

Operating lease instalments are recognised as expenses
in the income statement, on a straight-line basis, over the
renfal period.

Financial investments

Financial investments in  subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly confrolled entities are registered
by the equity method, with the participations initially
accounted at the acquisition cost, which is adjusted
proportionally fo the participation in the corresponding
equity, af the date of acquisition or af the date of the first
adoption of the equity method.

Under the equity method, permanent participations
are adjusted annually by the amount corresponding fo
the participation in the net profit/loss of the subsidiaries
and associated companies as opposed fo income
or expenses in the period. The participations are also
adjusted by the value corresponding fo the participation
in ofher variations in the equity of these companies,
as opposed to the item “Adjustments in financial
assets”. Furthermore, the dividends received from these
companies are registered as a decrease in investments.

The remaining investments are registered af acquisition

cost or, in the case of financing granted, at nominal value
(there are situations where the nominal value differs from
the fair value at the date of acquisition). An assessment
of the investments in associafed companies is made
whenever there are indications that the asset may be
impaired, with the impairment losses that are shown to
exist being registered as costs. Income obtfained from
financial investments (dividends or profit distriouted) are
registered in the income stafement for the period in which
distribution is decided and announced.

Integration of branches

The accounting information of the branches where
the Company develops ifs acfivity, namely Angola,
Mozambique, Morocco, Botswana, Cape Verde, Zambia,
Malawi and Galon, is monthly infegrafed in accounting.
The balances and fransactions occurred in the period
between the registered office and the branches are
eliminated.

When the funcfional currency of the branch is different
from the reporting currency of the Company, the process
of integration is performed through the translation of the
variations of assefs and liabilities, income and expenses
at the exchange rate in force on the date of each monthly
infegration. On the reporting date, the exchange
differences resulting from monetary assets and liabilities
are calculated, being registered as income or expenses in
the income statement.

In the accounting information of the branches are mainly
used accounting policies in force in Portugal. To guaranfee
the uniformity of the accounting policies, whenever
the local legislation is different from the laws in force in
Portugal, the proper adjustments are made.

Impairment of non-current assets (except for
goodwill)
Whenever an evenf or change in drcumstances is
identified that would indicate that the amount by
which the asset is registered cannot be recovered, an
assessment of impairment is performed with reference at
the end of each period.

Whenever the amount by which the asset is registered
is higher than its recoverable amount, an impairment
loss is recognised, registered as an expense in the item
"Impairment  of depreciable/amortisable  investments
(losses/reversals)”. The recoverable amount is the highest
between the assets' net selling price and the use value.

The net selling price is the amount that would have been
achieved with the disposal of the asset in a fransaction
between independent and knowledgeable entifies,
deducted fromthe costs directly affributable to the disposal.
The use value is the present value of estimated fufure cash
flows expected to arise from the confinuing use of the asset
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andfromits disposal af the end of its useful life. Recoverable
amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if this is not
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the assef
pelongs.

Affer the recognifion of an impairment loss, the expense
with the amortisafion/depreciation of an asset is adjusted
in future periods fo allocate the asset's revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis
over ifs remaining useful life.

The reversal of impairment loss recognised in previous
periods is registered when it is concuded that the
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. This assessment is made whenever it is
Pelieved that impairment losses previously recognised
have been reversed. The reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income in the income stafement. However,
the reversal of the impairment loss is performed up fo
the limif of the amount that would be recognised (net of
amortisation or depreciation), if the impairment loss had
not been registered in previous periods.

Costs of financing obtained

Costs related to financing are recognised as an expense on
anaccrualbasis, evenin cases where these costs are directly
affributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an assef whose period of fime o get ready for ifs infended
use is substantial, in which case it could be capitalised until
the moment in which all the activities necessary fo prepare
the asset eligible for ifs use or sale are complete.

Inventories
Goods and raw, subsidiary and consumable materials are
stated af acquisition cost or atf market price, whichever is
lower (using the average cost as a cosfing method). Market
price means the netrealisable value or the replacerment cost.

Finisned or semi-finished products, by-products and
products and works in progress are valued af production
cost (which includes the cost of raw materials, lalbour and
production overheads) or at market price in case this is
lower. Market price means the net realisable value.

In cases where the market price is lower than the acquisition
cost, impairment losses are recognised.

Financial instruments

i. Debtors

Debtors are registered at their nominal value and
presenfed af the balance sheef nef of eventual
impairment losses, recognised in the ifem “lmpairment of
doubtful debts (losses/reversals)”, in order to reflect their
net realisable value. There are no sifuations where the
nominal value differs from the fair value and, therefore,
where the debt should be measured using the effective
inferest method.
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Impairment losses are recognised if there is objective and
measurable evidence that, as a result of one or more
events which occurred, the outstanding balance will not
be fully or partially received. For that, the Company fakes
info consideration market information showing that the
clientis insolvent along with historical dafa of overdue and
not paid amounts.

Recognised impairment losses correspond to  the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated cash flows, discounted af the
original effective interest rafe, which is null whenever
payment is expected fo occur within less than one year.

ii. Financing

Financing is registered as liabilities af its amortfised cost.
Financial expenses are calculated based on the effective
inferest rafe and are registered in the income statement
for the period on an accruals basis.

There are no situafions where the application of the
amortised cost method has a materially relevant impact
on the measurement, when compared fo the nominal
value.

iii. Trade creditors

Trade creditors and other creditors are registered af their
nominal value, as they do not bear interests, being the
effect of the use of the effective inferest method considered
immaterial.

iv. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
based upon their confractual substance, regardless of the
legal form they assume.

An insfrument is dassified as a financial liability when
there is a confractual obligation for ifs sefflement to be
effected through the delivery of cash or anofher financial
asset, regardless of its legal form. Finandial liabilities are
recognised initially af fair value net of fransaction costs
incurred, and subsequently at amortised cost, using the
effective inferest rate method.

An instrument is classified as an equity instrument when
there is no confractual obligation for its seftlement fo be
effected through the delivery of cash or another financial
asset, regardless of ifs legal form, which evidence a
residual inferest in the assetfs of an entity affer deducting
all of its liabilities.

The costs directly affributable fo the issuance of equity
instfruments are recognised in equity as a deductfion to
the amount issued. Amounts paid or received related to
purchases or sales of equity instruments are registered in
equity, net of fransaction costs.



The distributions made of an equity instrument are
deducted to equity as dividends, when declared.

v. Own shares

Own shares are accounted at the acquisition cost as an
allowance fo equity. Gains or losses arising from disposal
of own shares are registered in the item “Other reserves”,
not affecting the profit/loss of the period.

vi. Discounted bills and accounts receivable in
factoring

The Company derecognises financial assets in its financial
statements, only when the contractual rights o the cash
flows inherent to those assets have already expired, or
when the Company substantially transfers all the risks
and benefits inherent to the ownership of those assets fo
a third entity. If the Company substantially refains the risks
and benefifs inherent fo the ownership of those assets, it
continues fo recognise them in ifs financial statements, by
registering in liabilities, in the ifem “Financing obfained”,
the monetary consideration for the assets fransferred.

Consequently, clients’ balances represented by discounted
pbills that have not yet reached their maturity dafe and
accounts receivable in factoring as af the balance sheef
datfe, with the exception of operations of “Factoring without
resource", are recognised in the financial staferments of the
Company, inliabilities, until they are collected.

vii. Cash and cash equivalents
The amounts included in the item "Cash and cash
equivalents” correspond to cash on hand, bank deposifs,
ferm deposits and other freasury applications, which
mature in less than three months and are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value.

Provisions, confingent liabilities and contingent
assets
Provisions are recognised only when the Company has
a present obligafion (legal or constructive) as result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required fo seftle the obligation, and a relioble
esfimate can be made of that obligation. Provisions are
reviewed atf each balance sheet date and are adjusted
fo reflect the best estimate af that datfe. Provisions for
resfructuring costs are recognised whenever a formal and
detailed restructuring plan exists and that plan has been
communicated fo the parties involved.

Contingent liabilifies are defined by the Company as: (i)
possible obligations arising from past evenfs and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence, or
not, of one or more uncertain future events not under full
confrol of the Company, or (i) present obligations arising
from past events, but which are not recognised because
it is unlikely that an oufflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation

or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or
other unexpected events that give rise fo the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the Company. The
Company does notf recognise the confingent assets in ifs
financial statements; it only proceeds to its disclosure if it
considers that the economic benefits which may result
fromthere fo the Company are likely. When the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
confingent asset and ifs recognition is appropriate.

Economic periods
Income and expenses are registered in the period fo which
they relate, regardless of the corresponding payment or
receipt, on an accruals basis. Differences between the
amounts received or paid and the corresponding income
and expenses are registered in the items "Other accounts
receivable”, "Other accounts payable” or “"Deferrals”.

Income taxes
The income taxes registered in profit/loss include the
effects of current taxes and deferred faxes. The current
income tax is defermined lbased on the faxable profit of
the Company, in accordance with the fax rules in force.

Deferred taxes refer to the femporary differences between
the amounts of the assets and liabilities for the purposes
of accounting records and the respective amounts for the
purposes of faxation, as well as those arising from the fax
benefits obtained and the fermporary differences between
the fax and accounting results. The faxis recognised in the
income statement, except when related with items, which
are moved in equity, a fact that implies their recognition
inequity.

Deferred fax assefs and liabilities are calculafed and
periodically evaluated using the faxation ratfes, which
are expected to be in force on the datfe of reversal of
temporary differences.

Deferred faxes refer fo femporary differences between
the accounting values of the assets and liabilities and their
fax base, using the tax rates approved or substantially
approved, af the balance sheet date, in each jurisdiction
and which are expected to be applied when the
temporary differences are reversed.

Deferred fax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences (except for goodwill not deductible
for fax purposes), differences arising on initial recognition
of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
faxable profit and differences relafing fo investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred fox assefs are
recognised to the extent when it is prolbbable that future
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faxable profits will be available to absorb deductible
femporary differences for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assefs are registered only when there are
reasonable expectations of sufficient faxable profits for
them to lbe used. Every year, a revaluation of the temporary
differences underlying to the deferred tax assets is made,
with the purpose of recognising or adjust them according
fo the present expectation of their future recovery.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assefs are classified as held for sale if
the balance sheet value is realisable through a sales
fransaction, rather than through its confinuing use. This
situation is only verified when: (i) the sale is probable and
the assets are available for immediate sale in the present
condifions; (i) the management is committed with a
sales plan; and (i) the sale is expectable to occur within
fwelve months.

Non-currentassets classified as held for sale are measured
af the lower value between the carrying amount and fair
value net of expectable expenses with ifs sale.

Government and other public entities subsidies
Subsidies for vocational training programmes  or
exploration subsidies are registered in the item "Grants
received as compensation for expenses” of the income
statement for the period in which these programmes are
carried ouf, independently of when they are received,
unless it becomes receivable in a later period, in which it
will be income for the period when it was received.

Non-reimbursable subsidies relafed fo the assets are
registered in the balance sheet as "Other changes
in equity" and recognised in the income staferment
proportionally fo the reinfegrations of the subsidised
assets, in each period.

Retirement complements

The Company has assumed the commitment of
affributing a number of pecuniary benefifs fo ifs
employees at complementary title of refirement pensions
for old age or disability. To cover those responsibilities,
the Company created a defined benefit Pension Fund in
1989, exclusive fo its employees, whose annual charges,
defermined according to acfuarial calculations, are
registered in accordance with the NCRF 28 — "Employee
benefits”.

The actuarial responsibilities are calculated according fo
the "Projected Unit Credit Method"”, oy using the actuarial
and financial assumptions considered appropriate.

Revenue
The Company recognises the income of works, contract by
contract, in accordance with the NCRF 19 - "Construction
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contracts” under the percenfage of completion method,
whichis understood as the relation between costs incurred
in each work unfil a cerfain date and the sum of those
cosfs with the costs estimated for the work completion.
The differences between the values resulfing from the
application of the level of completion fo the estimated
income and the invoiced values are included in the items
"Other accounts receivable” and “Deferrals”.

Variations in works in the amount of revenue agreed in the
contract are recognised in the income for the period when
it'is highly possible that the client will approve the amount
of revenue arising from the variation, and that this can be
reliably measured.

Claims for reimbursement of costs not included in the
confract price are included in confract revenue when
negotiations are at an advanced stage and it is prolbbable
that the client will accept the daim, and that it will be
reliably measurable.

To meet the costs incurred during the warranty period of
the works, the Company recognises every year liabilities
fo fulfil this legal obligation, which is calculated faking
info account the annual production volume and the costfs
incurred in the past with works in warranty period. When
it is probable that fotal costs foreseen in the construction
confract will exceed its defined income, the expected loss
shall be immediately recognised in the income stafement
for the period.

Dividends from parficipations registered af cost are
recognised as income in the income statement for the
period in which ifts affribution is decided.

Expenses with the preparation of proposals
The expenses made with the preparation of proposals for
several fenders are recognised in the income statement
for the period in which they are incurred.

Own work capitalised
Own work capifalised corresponds to construction and
improvernent works carried out by the Company itself,
as well as the major repairs of equipment and include
expenses with materials, direct labour and general
expenses.

Those expenses are object of capitalisation only when
fulfilled the following requirements:

- The assefs developed are identfifiable;

- There is a strong probability of the assets generafing
future economic benefits; and

- They can be reliably measured.



Subsequent events

Events that occur affer the balance sheef datfe that
provide evidence or additionalinformation on conditions
existing af the balance sheet date (“adjusting events”),
are reflected in the financial sfatements of the Company.
Evenfs affer the balance sheef dafe thaf provide
information on conditions arising after the balance
sheet date ("non-adjusting events”), when material, are
disclosed in the notes o the financial statements.

Judgements and estimates
The preparation of the financial staterments was based
on best knowledge and experience of past and/or
present events, considering assumptions relafing to
future events.

The most significant accounting estimates reflected in
the financial statements for the periods ending on 3l
December 2018 and 201/ include:

- Useful lives of tangible asses;
- Record of provisions and impairment losses;
- Recognition of revenue in works in progress;

- Recognition of the present value of responsibilities with
retirement benefits; and

- Calculation of fair value of the financial instfruments.

The estimates were determined based on the best
information available at the preparation date of the
finandial stfafements. However, sifuations may occur in
subsequent periods that, not being foreseeable af the
date, have no impact on the estimates. Changes fo
the estimates that occur affer the date of the financial
statements, will be corrected in profit/loss, using a
prospective method, in accordance with NCRF 4.

3.2. Other relevant accounting policies

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the nef profit affributable to the shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in circulation during the period, excluding the
number of own shares held.

Foreign currency
All assefs and liabilities expressed in foreign currency
have been converted info the functional presentation
currency, using fthe exchange ratfes in force at the
reporfing date. Exchange gains and losses resulting
from differences between the exchange rafes in force
on the date of the transactions and those in force on the
dates of collection, payments or the balance sheet date,

are recognised as income and expenses in the income
stafement for the period.

Exchange differences related to accounts receivable/
payable whose maturity is not defined, are registered
in the income sfafement for the period when those
accounts receivable/payable are depreciated/disposed/
liquidated. Financial statements of participated
companies and branches expressed in foreign currency
are translafed fo euros.
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The exchange ratfes used fo convert to euros were as

follows:
| ws
CURRENCY TRANSACTION CURRENCY

American Dollar Euro 0.87336 n/a 0.83382 n/a
Moroccan Dirham Euro 0.09130 0.09022 0.08939 0.09123
Botswana Pulas Euro 0.08150 0.08320 0.08480 0.08545
Mozambican Metical Euro 0.01423 0.01402 0.01420 0.01397
Cape Verdean Escudo Euro 0.00907 0.00907 0.00907 0.00907
CFA Franc Euro 0.00152 0.00152 0.00152 0.00152
Zambian Kwacha Euro 0.07323 0.08010 0.08341 0.09219
Malawi Kwacha Euro 0.00120 0.oon7 0.00115 0.00121
Angolan Kwanza Euro 0.00279 0.00325 0.00529 0.00526
South African Rand Euro 0.06066 n/a 0.06702 n/a
Namibian Dollar Euro 0.06031 n/a 0.06734 n/a

3.3. Judgements on the application process of
the accounting policies and which had greater
impact in the amounts recognised in the financial
statements

In the preparation of the financial stfafements according
with NCRF  (equivalent to GAAP), the Company uses
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of the policies and amounts reported. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are lbased
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumsfances on which the
esfimate was based, or as a result of new information or
more experience.

3.4. Main assumptions concerning the future

The atffached finandial statements have been prepared
bearing in mind the continuation of the Company's
operations, from the accounting books and records of the
Company, mainfained in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Porfugal.

Events that occur affer the balance sheet date that affect
the value of the existing assets and liabilities at the balance
sheef datfe are considered when preparing the financial
staternents for the period. Those events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if material.

3.5. Major sources of uncertainty

The present nofe makes reference fo the major
assumptions for the future adopted in the preparation of
the aftached financial stafements, which may involve a
significant risk of material adjustments fo the valuation of
assets and liabilities in the following financial period.

Impairment of assets
The determination of the impairment of assefs requires
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an esfimate of the present value of the fufure cash
flows associated o those assets. In this calculation, the
assumptions are adopted based on the Company's
historical experience, as well as on future expectations. The
Company considers that there is a confrolled risk of these
assumptions not faking place.

4.1. Management's comment about the amount of
significant balances of cash and cash equivalents,
which are not available for use

The balance amount of “"Cash and cash equivalents” is
fully available.

4.2. Breakdown of the amounts registered in “Cash
and bank deposits”

The cash and bank deposits balance is the following:

Cash 201,043 40,731

Demand deposits 10,394,573 5,042,504

Term deposits 919,813 942,782



5.1. Remunerations of the key management personnel

Total remunerations: 1,869,529 euros (2017:
1,286,383 euros).

5.2. Transactions between related parties

Nature of the related party relationship:

BRANCHES:

Angola - - -
Mozambique - - -
Morocco - - -
Bofswana - - -
Cape Verde - - -
Zambia - - -
Malawi - - -
Gabon - - -

SUBSIDIARIES:

Conduril - Gestdo de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. Portugal 100.00 100.00
Edirio - Construgdes, S.A. Portugal 100.00 100.00
Métis Engenharia, Lda. Angola 99.00 99.00
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. Mozambique 100.00 100.00
Urano, Lda. Angola 99.00 99.00
Conduril Engenharia - Agores, S.A. Portugal 100.00 100.00

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES:

Groupement Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro, Conduril - Construcdo, ACE Morocco 33.33 33.33
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construgdo ACE Morocco 33.33 33.33
Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construcéio ACE Morocco 50.00 50.00
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE Portugal 16.67 16.67
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE Portugal 17.86 17.86
UTE Alcéntara - Garrovillas Spain 15.00 15.00

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:

Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. Portugal 21.64 23.64
SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploracdo Rodovidria, S.A. Portugal 2001 21.85
Planestrada - Operagdo e Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. Portugal 33.33 33.33
Marestrada - Operagdo e Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. Portugal 33.33 33.33

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Anténio Luis Amorim Martins (President) - Chairman

Maria Benedita Andrade de Amorim Martins (President of the Executive Committee) - CEO
Marria Luisa Andrade Amorim Martins Mendes (Vice-President of the Executive Committee)
Anténio Baragas Andrade Miragaia

Anténio Emanuel Lemos Catarino

Jorge LUcio Teixeira Castro

Miguel José Alves Montenegro Andrade

Ricardo Nuno Aragjo Abreu Vaz Guimardes

OTHER RELATED PARTIES:
Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundacdes Especiais, Lda. Portugal - -
Sociedade Agricola da Quinta do Javali, Lda. Portugal - -

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018



Transactions and outstanding balances:
As atf 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company presented the following transactions and balances in what concerns the
related entities:

As at 31 December 2018:
RELATED PARTIES OLIJB-EJ:IT(?EI?G 0l;;I;*:SL.I-A‘L\r:lcnlilgl © IMPAA?ICRLI:A'\:E‘:'II-'AL.I;SDSES PROVISIONS
ASSETS LIABILITIES
ENTITIES WITH JOINT CONTROL OR SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE:
Groupement Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro, Conduril - Construcdo, ACE 761,575 - - 6,364,178
Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construcdo ACE 1,640,442 100,966 - 495,263
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construgéio ACE 828,503 - - -
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 1,116,901 - - 888,000
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE 1175,218 338,373 802,565
A I
SUBSIDIARIES:
Conduril - Gestdio de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. 5,897,002 - 336,000 493,380
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 2,767,354 175,697 - -
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 17,013,113 19,588,321 - -
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. 10,600,438 9,581,512 - -
Urano, Lda. 2,679,405 2,824,003 -
Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 103,641
T
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:
gzsi;igg;iegide Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploracéo 17,408,516 . 20,000 B
Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. 11,396,123 20,000
. I— —
OTHER RELATED PARTIES:
UTE Alcantara - Garrovillas 1,212,122 - -
Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. - 590,442 - -
Geonortfe - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. - Angola branch 1,057,074 758,926

RELATED PARTIES INCOME EXPENSES

ENTITIES WITH JOINT CONTROL OR SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE:
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 161,581 3,376
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE

SUBSIDIARIES:
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 928,306 121,887
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 147,759 -
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. 7,327977 9,319,354
Urano, Lda. 178,383 1114110
Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 1,332,999 1,872,861
]
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:
SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploracdo Rodovidria, S.A. 77317 -
Planestrada - Operagdo e Manutencdo Rodovidria, S.A. 8,618
e E—
OTHER RELATED PARTIES:
UTE Alcantara - Garrovillas 66,775 -
Sociedade Agricola da Quinta do Javali, Lda. - 59,943
Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. 672,515 651,428
Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. — Angola branch 302,995 13,842

The financing granted fo the related parties, registered in other financial investments, are detailed in Note 9.2.
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As at 31 December 2017:

OUTSTANDING OUTSTANDING

RELATED PARTIES BALANCES BALANCES I MlﬁAcIchth'\éﬂ'll-'AL]C-fSDSES PROVISIONS
ASSETS LIABILITIES
ENTITIES WITH JOINT CONTROL OR SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE:
Edifer / RRC / Conduril, ACE - 197,716 - -
Groupement Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro, Conduril - Construcdo, ACE 7,198,480 - - 6,245,071
Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construcdio ACE 1,517,235 556,130 - 387119
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construcdo ACE 811,892 - - -
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 1,265,961 - - 633,182
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE 2,096,637 337,517 614,093
. ——
SUBSIDIARIES:
Conduril - Gestdio de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. 3,594,240 - 336,000 394,327
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 2,228,691 - - -
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 25,478,419 32,413,030 - -
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Publicas, Lda. 14,199,244 10,993,359 15,765 47,403
Urano, Lda. 4,390,323 6,023,212 - -
Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 266,858
e
OTHER PARTICIPATIONS:
Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. 11,396,123 - - -

SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a Construgdo e Exploragdo 17,408,514
Rodovidria, S.A.

OTHER RELATED PARTIES:
Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. 49,707 55,946 - B
Geonortfe - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. - Angola branch 1,828,025 1,501,969

RELATED PARTIES INCOME EXPENSES

ENTITIES WITH JOINT CONTROL OR SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE:

RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 3,558,148 18,432

RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE 5,706,506 394,493
e

SUBSIDIARIES:

Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 1,338,702 1,313,305

Métis Engenharia, Lda. 9,808,760 15,470,864

ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. 247,285 796,413

Urano, Lda. 3,237,348 5,706,230

Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 205,562
]

OTHER RELATED PARTIES:

Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundagdes Especiais, Lda. 329,521 102,852

Geonorte - Geotecnia e Fundacdes Especiais, Lda. - Angola branch 216,310 731,394

The financing granted fo the related parties, registered in other financial investments, are detailed in Note 9.2.
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6.1. Disclosure for each class of infangible assets,
distinguishing  between infernally generafed
intangible assets and other intangible assets

Depreciations for the period are calculated faking
info account the following average useful lives and
amortisation rates for each item:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHERS USEFUL LIFE AMORR.I:.?EATION

Computer programmes 3 33.33%
Development rights 60 1.66%
Other intangible assets 3 33.33%

Elements of infangible assets are depreciated by the
straight-line method, based on their expected useful life.

The intangible assets are the following:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
[NIANCIBLESSSEISLOTHERS GROSS ASSETS AMORTISATIONS AND GROSS ASSETS AMORTISATIONS AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Computer programmes 94,267 87718 94,267 82,524
Industrial property 4721 - 4721 -
Development rights 5,801,426 600,149 5,801,426 580,447
Other intangible assets 2,006 1,727 2,006 1,727

The value of amortisations related fo intangible
assets included in the item “Depreciation and
amorfisation expenses/reversals” of the income
statement is the following:

AMORTISATIONS FOR THE PERIOD -

OTHERS
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHERS
Computer programmes 5194 8,416
Development rights 19,702 31,378

The movements in the item “Intangible assets”
during 2018 and 2017 are the following:

-
GROSS ASSETS:

Balance as af 31.12.2017 5,801,426 94,267 4721 2,006 5,944,820
Additions - - - - -

Transfers and write-offs -

Balonce 05 131.12.2018 5.801.426 594,820

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION:
Balance as at 31.12.2017 580,447 82,524 - 1,727 664,698
Additions 19,702 5194 - - 24,896

Transfers and write-offs -

Balance s at 31.12.2018 600,149 87,718 - 1727 689,59
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DEVELOPMENT

SOFTWARE

OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

RIGHTS
GROSS ASSETS:
Balance as at 31.12.2016 5,801,426 94,267
Additions - -

Transfers and write-offs -

2,006 5,944,820

Balance as at 31.12.2017 5,801,426 94,267 47,21 I 5,944,820

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION:
Balance as at 31.12.2016 549,069 7408
Additions 31,378 8,416

Transfers and write-offs

1727 624,904

39,794

Balance s at 31.12.2017 580,447 82,524 -] 1727 664,698

7.1. Disclosure on property, plant and equipment

Measurement bases:
Tangible assets are valued according o the cost model, o
which an ifem of property, plant and equipment shall be
carried atits cost less any accumulated deprediation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation method used:
The Company amortises its property, plant and equipment
assefs according fo the straight-line method. In accordance
fo this method, depreciation is constant during the useful
life of the assets if ifs residual value does nof change.

Useful lives and depreciation rates used
Depreciations for the period are calculated taking
info account the following average useful lives and
amortisation rates for each item:

TANGIBLE ASSETS USEFUL LIFE AMORTISATION

Land and natural resources - -
Buildings and other

) 10-25 4%-10%
constructions
Machinery and other equipment 3-16 6.25% - 33.33%
Transport equipment 3-8 12.50% - 33.33%
Office equipment 3-12 8.33% -33.33%
Other property, plant and 3-10 10% - 33.33%
equipment )
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Reconciliation of the carrying amount at the
beginning and end of the period:

OTHER

naua | swwone | avoonan | Tveorr | ome Y oy fremiened ron

RESOURCES QI CONSTRUCTIONS EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT
GROSS ASSETS:
Balance as at 31.12.2017 2,622,286 24,687,177 80,621,343 23,259,966 1,881,221 1165960 16,349,915 150,587,868
Additions - - 1,280,367 1,093,833 19,394 235173 2,951,551 5,580,318
Disposals - - (2,226,785) (613,972) - (435) - (2,841,192)
Transfers and write-offs 785,948 (385,114) (24,533) (1,142,554) (766 253)
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:
Balance as at 31.12.2017 - 15,926,530 58,228,261 19,562,313 1,566,768 700,219 - 95,084,091
Additions - 705,109 4,389,516 883,750 56,858 173,266 - 6,208,499
Disposals - - (1185,185) (547,607) = (435) - (1,733,227)
Transfers and write-offs (103,974) (31,156) (24,533) (439, 663)

Balance as a 3112.2018 _ 16,631,639 61,328,618 19,587,300 1,623,626 848,517 _

OTHER

warar | avvomer | wpome [ manseorr ) omce - f eroperry [nvesruents

RESOURCES CONSTRUCTIONS EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT
GROSS ASSETS:
Balance as at 31.12.2016 2,622,286 23,417,074 80,920,590 23,446,771 1,826,741 1,154,551 10,504,974 143,892,987
Additions - - 1,497,633 569,663 45,428 18,993 7,591,747 9,723,463
Disposals - - (1,931,603) (704,954) (1,715) - - (2,638,272)
Transfers and write-offs 1,270,103 134,723 (51,514) 10,767 (7,584) (1,746,806) (390, 311)
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:
Balance as at 31.12.2016 - 15,222,863 53,235,295 18,990,197 1,493,082 494,565 - 89,436,002
Additions - 703,667 6,537,594 1,332,844 74,191 205,388 - 8,853,684
Disposals - - (1,542,320) (694,826) (942) - - (2,238,088)
Transfers and write-offs (2,308) (65,902) (67,507)

Balance as at 31.12.2017 _ 15,926,530 58,228,261 19,562,313 700,219 _ 95,984,091

7.2. Amount of expenditures recognised in the carrying 7.3. Depreciation recognised in profit/loss or as part of
amount of fixed assets during its construction other assets costs during the period

EXPENDITURES RECOGNISED DURING
TANGIBLE ASSETS CONSTRUCTION

DEPRECIATION RECOGNISED
IN PROFIT/LOSS

TANGIBLE ASSETS

31.12.2017

Buildings and other constructions 2,891,541 7,591,747 Buildings and other constructions 705,109 703,667
Machinery and other equipment 15,736 - Machinery and other equipment 4,389,516 6,537,594
Transport equipment 44,24 ) Transport equipment 883,750 1,332,844
(ejc;:grg:,ﬁerm plontand - - Office equipment 56,858 74,191
S;Bfgrgg‘:ew plontand 173,266 205,383
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7.4. Accumulated depreciation at the end of the period

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

TANGIBLE ASSETS
=
Buildings and other constructions 16,631,639 15,926,530
Machinery and other equipment 61,328,618 58,228,261
Transport equipment 19,587,300 19,562,313
Office equipment 1,623,626 1,566,768
Other property, plant and equipment 848,517 700,219

7.5. Items of fixed assets in progress

The most significant values included in the ifem
"Investments in progress”, as at 31 December 2018 and
2017, refer o the following projects:

INVESTMENTS IN PROGRESS

TANGIBLE ASSETS
=x
Buildings and other constructions 17,873,868 16,349,915
Equipment 101,732 -
Transport equipment 183,312 -
Other assets - -

7.6. Property, plant and equipment by geographical
location

“ GROSS ASSETS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET AMOUNT

Portugal 44,612,321
Angola 82,720,635
Mozambique 8,617,030
Morocco 2,215,078
Botswana 60,163
Cape Verde 4,476
Zambia 11,057,528
Malawi 1,801,868
Gabon 1,471,642

32,747,340

50,456,625

4,339,950
266,803
48,445
2,834
8,292,015
1,123,039
842,649

11,864,981
32,264,010
4,277,080
48,275
1,718
1,642
2,765,513
678,829
628,993

2017 GROSS ASSETS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET AMOUNT

Portugal 44,990,788
Angola 80,344,301
Mozambique 8,234,416
Morocco 2,215,078
Botswana 89,614
Cape Verde 4,476
Zambia 11,055,488
Malawi 1,801,868
Gabon 1,851,839

32,387,468
48,889,536
3,740,193
2,009,250
76,064
2,834
7,351,990
775,690
751,066

12,603,320
31,454,765
4,494,224

205,828
13,549
1,642
3,703,498
1,026,178
1100,773
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8.1. Finance leases - Lessees

Net carrying amount for each asset category at 31

December 2018 and 2017:

Mc:c_hinery and other 970,669 820,886
equipment

Transport equipment 1,464,896 724,013

Reconciliation between the total of the future
minimum lease payments at 31 December 2018 and
2017 and its present value:

Minimum payments up fo 1year 895,291 497,598
Minimum payments for more than 1year and no more than 5 years 1,676,094 955,796

Minimum payments for more than 5 years - -

Future interest payments 45,559 27,680

Total of the future minimum lease payments at the
balance sheet date and its present value:

MINIMUM PAYMENTS PRESENT VALUE

No more than 1year 895,291 497,598 872,467 483,294
More than 1year and no more than 5 years 1,676,094 955,796 1,653,359 942,420
More than 5 years - - - -

9.1. Breakdown of the amounts registered in
"Permanent participations - equity method”

Subsidiaries 7,299,185 12,334,060
Jointly controlled entities - 107,863
Associated companies 823,721 -
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9.2. Subsidiaries

List and description of the subsidiaries:

COMPANY TYPE OF PARTICIPATION METHOD USED

Conduril - Gest@io de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. 100.00% Equity method
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 100.00% Equity method
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 99.00% Equity method
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Publicas, Lda. 100.009% Equity method
Urano, Lda. 99.00% Equity method
Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 100.00% Equity method
Carrying amount and data about the entities:
COI%/I(:?«NY CARRYING AMOUNT TOTAL ASSETS SHARLz-roAtDERS' TO':'ﬁtgs‘QQOD
FUNDS
Conduril - Gestdo de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. - 5,074,002 (494,380) (99,053)
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 151,621 3,274,896 164,121 4,812
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 5,041,220 23,724,501 5,092,141 18,081
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Publicas, Lda. 193,654 15912,859 193,653 271,363
Urano, Lda. 1,627,868 6,813,721 1,644,311 180,950
Conduril Engenharia - Acores, S.A. 284,822 699,889 284,822 (12,418)
CO'%A(::ZNY CARRYING AMOUNT TOTAL ASSETS SHAR:E:;:?DLI;‘DERS' TO':'ﬁtgiEOD
Conduril - Gestdo de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. - 5,069,064 (395,326) (164,494)
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 146,810 2,461,716 159,310 351,466
Métis Engenharia, Lda. 9,404,523 38,754,410 9,264,378 238,046
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. - 19,176,465 (63,168) (132,746)
Urano, Lda. 2,775,097 10,648,789 2,803,165 737,334
Conduril Engenharia - Agores, S.A. 7,630 1,049,151 7,630 (177,815)

Related to these participations, in 2018, in the itfem
"Other financial investments” are registered the following
amounts concerned fo financing granted:

COMPANY FINANCING GRANTED ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Conduril - Gestdo de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A. 336,000
Edirio - Construcdes, S.A. 12,500
ENOP - Engenharia e Obras Pdblicas, Lda. 15,806

9.3. Joint ventures

List and description of the interests in significant
joint ventures:

336,000

COMPANY TYPE OF PROJECT OTHER PARTICIPANTS

Edifer / RRC / Conduril, ACE

Groupement Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro, Conduril - Construcdo, ACE
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construgéio ACE

Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construcdo ACE

RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE

RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE

Jointly confrolled entity
Jointly controlled entity
Jointly controlled entity
Jointly controlled entity
Jointly confrolled entity

Jointly controlled entity

Elevolution and RRC
Elevolution and Jaime Ribeiro e Filhos
Elevolution and Jaime Ribeiro e Filhos

Jaime Ribeiro e Filhos
Elevolution and Tecnovia

Elevolution and Tecnovia
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Proportion of ownership interest held and
data about the entities:

TOTAL
?;f\:ﬁjgi‘?;ﬁ”ono' Jaime Rioeiro, Conduril - 33.33% - 1,892029 (19,094,444) (357,356)
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construgdo ACE 33.33% - n/a n/a n/a
Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construcéio ACE 50% - 8,818,033 (990,527) (216,288)
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 16.67% - 3,901,636 (4,814,426) (1,271)21)
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE 17.86% - 5,799,750 (4972,003) (1,535,752)

TOTAL
2017 PROPORTION OF THE CARRYING , l| TOTAL PERIOD

COMPANY INTEREST HELD AMOUNT JCIELESSELS SHNQFEJHN%LSD ERS INCOME
Edifer / RRC / Conduril, ACE 33.33% 107,863 609,606 607,146 284,150
Groupenjenf Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro, Conduril - 33.33% ~ 1892029 (19,094,444) (357,356)
Construgdio, ACE
Groupement CJA / Lot 3 - Construggo ACE 33.33% - n/a n/a n/a
Groupement Tunel de Nador, Construgdo ACE 50% - 8,818,033 (990,527) (216,288)
RAL - Rodovias do Algarve Litoral, ACE 16.67% - 6,024,478 (3,545,254) (4,447,544)
RBA - Rodovias do Baixo Alentejo, ACE 17.86% - 10,230,179 (3,438,368) (2,282,516)

In 2018, the Edifer / RRC / Conduril Complementary
Grouping of Companies was dissolved.

At the preparation dafe of the financial statements, the
financial statements of the groups Groupement CIA /
Lot 3 - Consfrucdio ACE, Groupement TUnel de Nador,
Construgdio ACE and Groupement Adriano, Jaime Ribeiro,
Conduril = Construcdio, ACE were not available.

Method used in the recognition of interests in
joint ventures:
The inferests in joinfly confrolled companies were
recognised in the finandal statements by the equity
method, from the datfe in which the contfrol is shared.
According fo this method, investmentis initially recognised
by the cost, being the carrying amount adjusted by the
corresponding value o the proportion held in net profit/
loss, dividends received and variation in equity.

9.4. Associated companies

List and description of the associated companies:

COMPANY PARTICIPATION METHOD USED

Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. 23.64% Equity method
SPER —§O.C|edode Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploragéo 21.85% Equity method
Rodovidria, S.A.

Planestrada - Operagdio e Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. 33.33% Equity method
Marestrada - Operagdio e Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. 33.33% Equity method
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Carrying amount and data about the entities:

2018
COMPANY

Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. -

SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploracdo
Rodovidria, S.A.

Planestrada - Operagdio e Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. 414,000

Marestrada - Operagdo e Manutencdo Rodovidria, S.A. 409,720

Related fo these participations, in 2018, in the item
"Other financialinvestments" are registered the following
amounts concerned fo financing granted:

CARRYING AMOUNT

TOTAL

TOTAL ASSETS SHAREHOLDERS' o oD
FUNDS
202,374,039 (8,626]82) 7423213
179,633938 15,852,232 (10,227909)
2621733 1242123 1182123
3,558915 1229287 434,401

COMPANY FINANCING GRANTED ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A.

SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a Construcdo e Exploracdo
Rodovidria, S.A.

9.5. Gains/Losses in subsidiaries and joint venfures

20,000

20,000

GAINS/LOSSES IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES m 31.12.2017

Expenses and losses in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures

Income and gains in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures

Elimination of the income related to the sales of property, plant and equipment to branches

Elimination of the expenses related fo the sales of property, plant and equipment to branches

Provisions for losses in Group's companies (Note 13)

10.1. Accounting policies adopted in the
measurement of inventories and cost formula used

Inventories are valued by cost or net realisable value, if this
is lower. Cost includes purchase costs, conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing the invenfories fo
their present condition. The purchase cosfs comprise the
purchase price, import duties and other taxes, fransport
expenses, handling, frade discounts, rebatfes and ofher
similar ifems. The conversion costs include expenses
directly relafed to units of production, such as direct
labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed
and variable production overheads that are incurred
in finished goods. The allocatfion of fixed production
overheads is based on the normal capacity of the
production fadilities.

The Company values its inventories by the weighted
average cost formula, which assumes that the cost of
each ifem is defermined from the weighted average of
the cost of similar items af the beginning of a period and
the cost of similar items purchased or produced during
the period.

171942 (424,297)
1,056,217 1124913
263,312 179,687
- (29,830)

(722191 (1,059,581)
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10.2. Total carrying amount of inventories and
carrying amount in appropriate classifications

The carrying amount of inventories is the following:

Raw, subsidiary and consumable materials 12,465,277 11,796,879
Goods 9,646 27,806
Finished and semi-finished products 129,375 129,375

Products and work in progress

[ — 01299 1554060

Impairment losses (873,109) (847,802)

10.3. Amount of inventories recognised as expense
during the period

The amount of inventories recognised as expense during
the period was the following:

GOOD RAW, SUBSIDIARY AND CONSUMABLE MATERIALS

Initial inventory 27,806 50,190 10,949,077 11,564,828

Impairment losses in stocks - - - -

Purchases - - 26,532,738 29,979,100

Inventories adjustments and reclassification (18,160) (22,384) - -

Ending inventory (9,646) (27,806) (11,592,168) (10,949,077)
T TR

Inifial inventory 129,375 129,375 - 310,187

Impairment losses in stocks -

Ending inventory (129,375) (129,375) - -

10.4. Amount of impairment losses in inventories
recognised in the result of the period

The value of impairment losses recognised in the result of
the period was the following:

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES IN INVENTORIES 31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Goods - -
Raw, subsidiary and consumable materials 25,307 56,899
Finished and semi-finished products -

Products and work in progress
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10.5. Movement during the period of impairment
losses in inventories

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON 31.12.2017
Increases
Reversal

Utilisations

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON 31.12.2016
Increases
Reversal

Utilisations

1.1. Amount of contract revenue recognised as
revenue in the period

The revenue of each consfruction confract includes the
initial amount of revenue agreed, as well as variations in
works, claims and incentfive payments to the extent that
it is probable that will result in revenue and are capable
of being reliably measured. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the amount of revenue recognised as revenue in the
period was the following:

REVENUE IN THE REVENUE IN THE
LTRSS PERIOD 2018 PERIOD 2017

Construction contracts 16,378,487 136,399,636

1.2. Methods used to determine the contract
revenue recognised in the period

The recognifion of revenue in the period is made
according fo the percentage of completion method.
Under this method, revenue is matched with the confract
costs incurred when reaching the stage of completion.
Contract revenue is recognised as revenue in the income
staterment in the accounting periods in which the work
is performed. In the cases the outcome of the confracts
cannof be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognised
only to the extent of confract costs incurred that it is
probable fo be recoverable.
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1.3. Methods used to determine the stage of
completion of ongoing contracts

Inorder to defermine the stage of completion of a contract,
itis used the method that most reliably measures the work
performed. Depending on the natfure of the contract, the
method used to defermine the stage of completion can
vary as follows:

- The proportfion that contract costfs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated fotal contract
Costs;

- Survey of the work performed;

- Complefion of a physical proportion of the work
performed.

11.4. Information related to the ongoing construction

contracts
“ EXPENSES INCURRED RECOGNISED INCOME ADVANCES RECEIVED RETENTION
Ongoing contracts 241,386,738 321,092,537 3,274,705 910,168

2017 EXPENSES INCURRED RECOGNISED INCOME ADVANCES RECEIVED RETENTION

Ongoing contracts 257,758,469 354,047924 6,900,473 1977,656

12.1. Accounting policies adopted for the recognition
of revenue, including the methods adopted fo
defermine the stage of completion of transactions
involving the provision of services

The Company recognises revenue according tfo the
following criteria:

Sales - are recognised in the income statement
when the risks and benefits inherent to the ownership
have been fransferred to the buyer, when there is not a
confinued management involverment fo a degree usually
associated with ownership, when the amount of revenue
can be reasonably measured, when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow fo the entity, and when the expenses incurred or to be
incurred with the transaction can be reliably measured.
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Provision of services - are recognised in the income
statement with reference fo the stfage of completion of the
provision of services af the balance sheef date.

Interest - is recognised using the effective inferest
method.

Dividends - are recognised from the moment in
which is established the shareholder’s right of receiving
the payment.

12.2. Amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the period, including the revenue

from:
T
Sales of goods 40,823 457907
Provision of services 119,659,428 140,003,060
Inferest 2,656,666 3,349,826
Dividends 800,907 4,178,380

13.1. Provisions

The Company recognises a provision when, cumulatively,
there is a present obligation as a result of a past event; it
is likely that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to seffle the obligatfion; and a
relioble estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

During the period ending on 31 December 2018, the
movements relating to provisions occurred were the

following:
EXCHANGE
PROVISIONS OPENING BALANCE INCREASES REVERSAL VARIATION CLOSING BALANCE
Guarantees fo clients 2,287,428 453,088 (323,772) 2,416,744
Other provisions 3,293 172,466 (22,545) 153,286
I BT 625554 ST I T
Financial investments (Note 9) 8,321,195 769,594 (47,403) - 9,043,386
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During the period ending on 31 December 201/, the
movements relating fo provisions occurred were the

following:

PROVISIONS OPENING BALANCE INCREASES RECLASSIFICATION REVERSAL CLOSING BALANCE
Guarantees to clients 1,983,694 364,222 (60,488) 2,287,428
Other provisions 1,220 3,348 (1,275) 3,293

T e w0 L - | e
Financial investments (Note 9) 7,261,614 1,251,737 - (192,156) 8,321,195

Provisions for financial investmentfs refer fo the
subsidiaries in the scope of the application of the equity
method, namely of Groupement Adriano, Jaime
Ribeiro, Conduril = Construcdo, ACE, Conduril — Gestdo
de Concessdes de Infraestruturas, S.A., Groupement
Tunel de Nador, Construcdo ACE and RBA - Rodovias
do Baixo Alentejo, ACE.

13.2. Proceedings in litigation

Following the several ongoing proceedings in litigation,
the Company is convinced that the risk of losing these
proceedings is unlikely and their outcome will not affect
the material form of ifs finandal position, being this belief
sustained by our infernal legal office, as well as by legal and
fax advisers.

13.3. Guarantees provided

As af 31 December 2018, the Company had assumed
responsibilities for the guarantees provided in the amount
of 56,258,904 euros (as at 31 December 2017 the amount
was 59,691,331 euros).

The bank guarantees were essentially provided for the
purpose of tenders, as a good performance guarantee
of works and finance.

13.4. Management of financial risks

General principles

The activity of Condurilis exposed fo several financial risks,
such as exchange ratfe risk, interest rate risk, credlit risk and
liquidiity risk. These risks are the result of the uncertainty
inherent to the financial markets, which is reflected in the
capacity fo estimate future cash flows and returns. The risk
management policy of Conduril is a confinuous process
in constant development, applied to the implementation
of ifs strategy, frying fo minimise possible adverse effects
arising from these uncerfainties, fypical of financial
markets.
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Exchange rate risk

Since the activity of Conduril is mainly located in Africa
(Angola, Mozambique, Zambia, Malawi and Gabon),
the Company is exposed fo the exchange rate risk of the
currencies in use in those countries. In order fo address
this risk, the contracts are celebrated in USD/EUR,
whenever possible. The evolution of the kwanza, metical,
Zambian kwacha and Malawi kwacha  currencies
against the euro impact the financial statements, and
the financial instfruments used fo hedge these currencies
are limited or non-existent.

Evolution of the exchange rate
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Interest rate risk

The interest rafe risk essentially results from the
indebtedness indexed to variable rafes. In 2018, no
inferest rate coverage was made, a decision fthat
proved to the be the right one. This type of risk was also
reduced with the fransformation of part of financing info
financing indexed at a fixed rate. We are monitoring this
issue, remaining open fo the possibility of executing an
inferest rafe coverage for part of our own financing.

Evolution of the Euribor rate
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Credit risk

The exposure of Conduril to creditf risk is mainly related
fo the accounts receivable resulting from the operatfing
activities: sales debts and services provided to clients.
The management of this risk aims fo guarantee the
recovery of the credits in the established deadlines,
without offecting the financial balance of the Company.
This risk is regularly monitored. The management of
these risks aims fo:

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018



i. evaluate the client in accordance with internal
procedures that imply detailed analyses of the entities
and the amounts involved;

ii. limit the credit granfed fo clients, considering the
deadline for receipt of each client;

iii. monitor the evolution of the level of credit granted;

iv. perform an impairment analysis of the amounts o
receive on a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidiity risk is defined as the risk of lack of ability to
seftle or fulfil its obligations on the stipulated deadline
and at a reasonable price. An essential instrument for
liquidity risk management is the annual and global
liquidity plan, prepared based on the liquidity plans of
each establishment. These plans are updated every
month. The existence of liquidity implies the definition of
parameters for the management of that liquidity, which
allow to maximise the refurn obtained and minimise the
costs of opporfunity related fo holding that liquidity safely
and efficiently.

The risk management in Conduril aims at:

- Liquidity — guarantee the permanent and efficient
access fo enough funds to deal with current payments
in the respective due dates;

- Safety — minimise the probability of default in terms of
refund of any application of funds; and

- Financial efficiency — guarantee to minimise the cost of
opportunity of the surplus liquidity holding af shortferm.

Conduril's policy is to reconcile the due dates of assets
and liabilities, managing their maturities in a balanced
way.

Managing its exposure to liquidity risk, Conduril's policy
is fo ensure the hiring of credit insfruments of different
natures and in amounts adjusted fo the specificities of
its needs, guaranteeing comfortable levels of liquidity.
It is also Conduril's policy that those facilities are hired
without implying the provision of guarantees.
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14.1. Exchange differences recognised in profit/loss

Exchange losses

- Other expenses 7,135,907 10,508,920
Exchange gains
- Other expenses 3,000,522 10,961,104

14.2. Net exchange differences classified in a separate
component of equity

EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
INEQUITY

Balance as at 31.12.2017 (4,252,250)
Exchange losses (5,722,150)
Exchange gains -

EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
INEQUITY

Balance as at 31.12.2016 (4,259,241)
Exchange losses 6,991
Exchange gains

15.1. Disclosure updating about the conditions at the
balance sheet date

Between the balance sheet dafe and the issuance of the
financial sfatfements, no information on the conditions
that existed at the balance sheet datfe were received, so
no adjustments in amounts recognised in the present
financial statfements were made.

15.2. Authorisation for the issue of financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors, in the meeting of 11 March 2019. The Board of
Direcfors believes thatthese financial stafements are atrue
and proper representation of the Company's operations,
as well asits financial position and performance and cash
flows.



16.1. Description of the measurement bases
adopted, as well as the methods used in the
calculation of value adjustments

From ifs activity, the Company has a legal or contractual
responsibility fo prevent, reduce or repair environmental
damage. To fulfil this obligation, the Company incurred
in expenses that amounted to 71,850 euros (in 2017, they
amounted fo 74,477 euros) during the period ending on 31
December 2018.

To measure the environmental expenses incurred, the
Company recognises the expenses effectively made in the
period.

16.2. Environmental expenses allocated to profit/
loss

All environmental expenses should be considered in
profit/loss if they were expenses incurred in that period,
i.e., ifthey donofaim fo preventfuture domage or provide
future benefifs.

Therefore, environmental expenses allocated fo profit/
loss refer to past or present activifies, or resforation of
environmental conditions in the statfe in which they were
before confamination.

AMOUNT ALLOCATED TO
PROFIT/LOSS

Waste treatment 71,850

17.1. Main components of tax expense and income

Current tax and adjustments:
Current tax for the period

5792123

Deferred taxes:

Deferred taxes related fo temporary differences

109,548
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Current tax and deferred fax shall be charged or credited
directly o equity if the tax relates fo ifems that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to

equity.

During the period ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no debifs/credifs were made directly fo equity relafed fo the
deferred taxes.

17.2. Relation between tax expense/income and
accounting profit

RECONCILIATION OF THE EFFECTIVE TAX RATE m 31.12.2017

Income before taxation 12,594,504 12,908,367
Income taxes expense 9,549,306 5,901,671
Effective tax rate 75,82% 45,72%
ADJUSTMENTS:

Differentiated rates of taxation and effect of double faxation 1,727,428 507,335
Application of the equity method (83,254) (66,674)
Value adjustments of non-deductible assets 5,331 27190
Expenses not accepted as fax cost 2,922,374 114,898
Provisions not accepted as expense 33,675 81904
Reversal of untaxed provisions - (268)
Tax refund / Insufficiency of tax 15,233 (31,250)
Other untaxed income (3,628,504) (1,051,148)
Tax loss deduction for the period (609,341) (367,210)
Tax losses for the period 4,796,269 2,765,260
Autonomous taxation 244,663 196,383
Tax benefits (1,835) (1,543)
Deferred taxes from previous financial years 239916 109,548
Untaxed exchange differences (722,796) -
International double taxation - (522,775)
Others 20,150 (215,937)

With reference o the period ending on 31 December 2018
and 2017, in accordance with article 54-A of the Portuguese
IRC Code, the Company opted for the non-inclusion of the
faxable profif allocated fo the Angola branch.

17.3. Deferred taxes

As at 31 December 2018, deferred fax assets and liabilities
are the following:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS OPENING BALANCE B OTHER VARIATIONS INCREASES REVERSAL CLOSING BALANCE

Tax losses

Others 103,713 (12,659) - (91,054) -

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES OPENING BALANCE [ OTHER VARIATIONS INCREASES REVERSAL CLOSING BALANCE

Revaluation surpluses 984,946 - - (44,189) 940,757
Depreciation not accepted 254,40 (31,020) 193,051 - 416,171
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As at 31 December 2017, deferred fax assets and liabilities
are the following:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS OPENING BALANCE B OTHER VARIATIONS INCREASES REVERSAL CLOSING BALANCE

Tax losses 236,714 (30,708)
Others 31,929 (1,541)

(206,0006)
(30,388) 103,713

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES OPENING BALANCE [l OTHER VARIATIONS INCREASES REVERSAL CLOSING BALANCE

Revaluation surpluses 1,057,889

Depreciation not accepted 234,788 (30,457)

18.1. Measurement bases

It is the Company's policy recognise an asset, a financial
liability and an equity instrument only when it becomes a
part of the contractual provisions of the instfrument.

The Company measures, af cost or amortised cost less
impairment loss, the financial instruments that have a
defined maturity, which the refurns have a fixed amount,
with a fixed inferest rafe during the insfrument's life or
of variable rate which is a fypical market indexing for
financing operations (for example, Euribor), or that
includes a spread on that indexing, which does not
contain a confractual clause that can result fo its holder in
loss of nominal value and accrued inferest (excluding the
cases of credit risk).

The confracts fo grant or fake a loan in a nef basis and
the equity instruments that are not publicly negofiated
and whose fair value cannot be obtfained reliably, as
well as contracts connected fo those instruments that, if
executed, resulf in the delivery of those insfruments, are
also measured at cost or amortised cost less impairment
loss.

Allfinancial instruments which are nof measure af cost or
amortised cost less any impairment loss are measured at
fair value.

The Company does not include the fransaction costs in
the inifial measurement of financial asset or liability, which
is measured af the fair value as part of profit/loss.

As long as the Company holds a financial instrument, the
measurement policy will nof be affected.

(72,943) 984,946

254,140
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18.2. Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets with recognition of impairment:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ACCUMULATED ACCUMULATED
CARRYING AMOUNT IMPAIRMENT CARRYING AMOUNT IMPAIRMENT

Trade accounts receivable 114,925,890 - 131,728,693 (105,936)
Clienfs with guarantees 2,937,428 - 5,454,928 -
Doubtful debtors 257,877 (2157,877) 2,811,643 (2,811,643)

18.3. Financial assets held for trading

As at 31 December 2017, this item includes the public delbt
securities of the Angolan State at short term (freasury
bonds), received as result of the debf sefflerment
agreements overdue from the client: Angola’s National
Roads Instifute.

18.4. Other financial assets

A as 31 December 2017, the amount registered in this
ifem fits the "Convention to export Porfuguese goods,
equipment and services 1o the Republic of Angola”, which
benefits from the guarantee of the Porfuguese Statfe, an
amount received in March 2018.

18.5. Financing obtained

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the item “Financing
obtained" is the following:

FINANCING OBTAINED m 31.12.2017

Escrow accounts 4,618,249 20,836,065
Bank loans 24,497,516 41,798,706
Commercial paper 13,000,000 32,141,669
Finance leases 2,525,825 1,425,714
Factoring 2,742,525 288,824
Contracted bank overdrafts 98 17,946,907

18.6. Permanent parficipations registered at cost
and other financial investments

Financial investments in  subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly confrolled entities are registered by
the equity method (notfe 9). The remaining investrents
are registered af acquisition cost or, in the case of
financing granted, af nominal value. An assessment of
the investrments is made whenever there are indications
that the asset may be impaired, with the impairment
losses that are shown fo exist being registered as
expenses. Income obfained from financial investments
(dividends or profit distriouted) are registered in the
income statement for the period in which distribution is
decided and announced.
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As af 31 December 2018 and 2017, the detail of permanent
participations registered by the cost model and of ofher
financial investments are the following:

| sweoos 3112207

LOANS GRANTED LOANS GRANTED
PERMANENT PERMANENT
PARTICIPATION ACCUMULATED B pARTICIPATION ACCUMULATED
IMPAIRMENT IMPAIRMENT
Rotas do Algarve Litoral, S.A. - 11,396,123 (20,000) 110,000 11,396,123 -
SPER - Sociedade Portuguesa para a
Construgdo e Exploragdo Rodovidria, - 17,408,516 (20,000) 129,500 17,408,516 -
S.A.
Planestrada - Operagdo e
Manutencdo Rodovidria, S.A. : B - 5,000 B °
Marestrada - Operagdo e B . R 5001 . :
Manutengdo Rodovidria, S.A. !
Garval 1,682 - - - - -
Lisgarante 1,682 - - - - -
Norgarante 18,877 - - 10,000 - -
BAI - Banco Africano Investimento 341,375 - - 341,375 - -
Lusit@nia Seguros 76,815 - - 76,815 - -
Edirio, S.A. - 12,500 - - 12,500 -
Conduril - Concessdes Infraest., S.A. - 336,000 (336,000) - 336,000 (351,765)
ENOP - Eng. Obras Publicas, Lda. - 15,806 - - 15,765 -
Other - Public debt securities 54,993,624 - - 55,470,944 - -
Other - FCT 34,222 - - 24,666 - -

OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 84,261,223 84,990,440

18.7. Total of interest income and expense for
financial assets and liabilities

To calculafe the amortised cost of a financial asset or
a finandal liability and allocate the interest income or
inferest expense during the period, the effective interest
method was used. According o this method, the tofal of
inferest income for financial assets and the fotal of inferest
expenses for financial liabilities are the following:

Interest income for financial assets:

FINANCIAL ASSETS m 31.12.2017

Bank deposits 2,656,321 3,348,016
Others 345 1,810

Interest expenses for financial liabilities:

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES m 31.12.2017

Financing 5,705,651 10,547,804
Finance leases 18,115 13,893
Ofhers 1,740 66,666
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18.8. Impairment losses in financial assets

For financial assets, which are not measured at fair value
through the profit/loss and regarding which impairment
is verified, the Company evaluated the respective
impairment. From this evaluation, the Company was able
fo acquire objective evidence that the financial assets,
shown in the following fable, present impairment losses
for the period:

NANCIAL ASSETS . ewaw

INCREASES REVERSALS UTILISATIONS

Clients 310,390 (569,335) (394,821)
Other accounts receivable - - -
Other financial assets - - -

31.12.2017

FINANCIAL ASSETS
INCREASES REVERSALS

Clients 418,107

Other accounts receivable

Other financial assets

18.9. Amount of share capital

As atf 31 December 2018, the Company had a share capital
of 10,000,000 euros, fully subscribed and paid-in.

18.10. Shares representing share capital

As at 3] December 2018, the share capital was composed
of 2,000,000 shares, with a nominal value of 5 euros each.

19.1. Post-employment benefits

As af 31 December 2018, there were 113 employees
enjoying post-employment benefits regarding benefit
plans defined. On 31 December 2018, the operations
relafed to the period are the following:

Cost of current services 315991 267113
Interest cost 307,037 345,055
Actuarial gains and losses - -
Return on assets (239,715) (327,224)
Other variations - -
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On 31 December 2018, there is a deficit of the amount of
past responsibilities regarding the value of the existing fund
inthe amount of 627762 euros (2017: 2,438,455 euros). The
deficit reduction verified in 2018 is due to the confribution to
the fund inthe amount of 2,000,000 euros. Thisamountis
registered in the ifem "Creditors by accrued expenses”. The
responsibilities with assets in the solvency scenario are fully
financed.

In what concerns the accrued amounfs of actuarial
gains and losses, these are registered in the equity ifem
"Adjustrents/Other changes in equity”, in the amount of
1,065,500 euros (2017: 1,499,220 euros).

Assumptions used in the actuarial study of 2018 and 2017:

Mortality table TV 88/90 TV 88/90
Normal retirement age 65years old 65years old
Number of pensions in the year 13 13
Rate of return of assets 4.5% 4.5%
Growth rate of wages 1.75% 1.75%

19.2. Social benefits

As atf 31 Decembber 2018, in the scope of the activity of the
Conduril Academy (centre accredited by the bodies that
are responsible for vocational fraining in the countries
it operates in), there were 697 employees in Angola
and Mozambigue benefifing from the plans of expert
knowledge, both in the fechnical and vocatfional area
and in the literacy and schooling areq, provided in the
workploces. The expenses related fo this activity are fully
financed by CONDURIL - Engenharia, S.A..

As at 31 December 2018, the operafions/actions/
programmes relafed to the period are as follows:

PAAE (Literacy and School Acceleration Programme) 258,543
Technical and Vocational Training 180,980
Human and Cultural Training 25,854
RVCCP (Process for Recognition, Validation and Certification of Professional Skills) 51,709
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20.1. State and other public bodies

The item "Stafe and other public bodies” as af 3l
December 2018 and 2017 is the following:

Personal Income Tax 4177 4,83
Value Added Tax 8,374,290 7,823,838
Business Income Tax 3,025,589 1,173,443
Other tfaxation 1937,681 3,305,530

LIABILITIES 31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Personal Income Tax 443,845 460,499
Value Added Tax 5,782,034 3,373,005
Social Security Contributions 511,491 457,300
Business Income Tax 7,561,409 2,269,890
Other taxation 429,835 394,071

20.2. Turnover

The furnover as af 31 December 2018 and 2017 is
distributed as follows:

Internal market 27,526,693 24,348,535
External market 92,173,558 16,112,432

20.3. External supplies and services

The item "External supplies and services” is the following, for
the period ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017

Subcontracts 22,098,779 28,851,599
Specialised services 14,083,974 19,437,492
Materials 1,245,238 2,893934
Energy and fluids 3,242,776 5,455,292
;I;rgr\::é;?commodcﬂon and 3,584,846 3,420,832
Rentals and leases 2,672,618 1,694,906
Communication 338,327 418,6/0
Insurances 1,039,639 781,765
Legal and notary services 35957 33,500
Representation expenses 98,009 106,966
Hygiene and comfort services 213,698 274,673
Other services 949,993 2,111,480
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20.4. Personnel expenses

The item "Personnel expenses” is the following, for the
period ending on 31 December 2018 and 201/

Remunerations of the management bodies 1,717910
Personnel remunerations 23,668,510
Post-employment benefits (Note 19) 383,313
Compensations 163,773
Social charges 2,723,756
Ioncsgurggﬁi rsg‘]zrivsf; SfceJ; accidents af work and 725,584
Social welfare expenses 1,781,762
Others 761,950

20.5. Otherincome

The item "Other income” is the following, for the period
ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017:

1,124,576
27,892,300
284,944
88,527
2,854,711
754,633
2,299,392
97,124

Additional income 6,786,185
Cash discounts obtained 162,395
Exchange gains 3,000,522
Gains in inventories 11,310
Igscsc;r;r;e and gains in the remaining non-financial 308,844
Interest received 2,656,666
Dividends earned 800,907
Corrections related fo the previous periods 538,679
Benefits from contractual penalties 7964,514
Others 414,694

20.6. Other expenses

The ifem "Other expenses” is the following, for the period
ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017:

13,880,717
6,892
10,961,104
7,567
352,608
3,349,825
4,178,380
239,819

210,824

Taxes 1,597,708
Cash discounts given 1,041,790
Bad debts 29,364

Exchange losses 7135907
Expenses and losses in non-financial investments 63,595

Fines and penalties 801,086
Corrections related to the previous periods 354,593
Others 1,025,351

3,170,375
818,783
51949
10,508,920
31,575
70,484
230,674
114,899
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20.7. Financial profit and loss account

The financial profit and loss are the following:

Interest paid 5,723,766 10,561,697

Other financing expenses and losses 588,303 604,267

20.8. Deferrals

Deferred assets and deferred liabilities are the following:

Expenses to be recognised - insurances 225,072 243,993
Pension fund - surplus (Note 19) - -

Other deferrals 37,574 30,364

Income to be recognised - NCRF 19 288,522 1,262,666
Income to be recognised - infernal operations profit 77,620 942,157
Pension fund (Note 19) - -
Billing to be recognised 162,899 308,637

20.9. Other accounts payable and receivable

The item "Otfher accounts receivable” is the following,
for the period ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Trade creditors - debit balances 730,909 466,402
Contract refentions 867,625 1,610,570
Other debtors - related parties 24,716,632 30,029,419
Debtors by accrued income 27,803,852 13,085,367
Payments on account 630,444 49,751
Personnel 41904 33,620
Other debtors 10,910,302 1,544,498

The item "Other accounts payable” is the following, for
the period ending on 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Clients - credit balances 37,349 43,199
Personnel 1,459,748 2,021,519
Investment providers 251,263 164,024
Creditors by accrued expenses - remunerations 1,404,562 2,754,148
Creditors by accrued expenses - others 5,424,590 3,242,367
Other creditors - related parties 369,038 1,320,862
Other creditors 1119940 1,417,727
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20.10. Proposal of application of netincome

In compliance with the legal and stafutory provisions,
in confinuation of the policy of fair refurn of the capital
invested and increase of its solvency, the Board of Directors
proposes that the nefincome for the period, in the amount
of 3,045,198 euros, has the following distribution:

- Dividends: 900,000 euros, corresponding fo 0.50
euros per share;

- Free Reserves: 2,145,198 euros.

The Company has no overdue debts fo the Portuguese
State, in accordance with the Decree-law no. 534/80, of
7/ November.

Compliant with the Decree-law no. 411/91, of 17 October,
the Company paid ifs social security confributions within
the fime limifs sfipulafed. Additional disclosures for the
entities referred fo in article 2(1)(h) and article 9(4), of
the Decree-law no. 158/2009, of 13 July, as amended by
Decree-law no. 98/2015, of 2 June.

21.1. Net turnover broken down by geographical
markets

Portugal 30,529,173 27102,505
Angola 48,847,202 80,098,084
Mozambique 10,404,587 2,978,455
Morocco 419,526
Zambia 21,406,554 18,199,823
Malawi 5,159,291 4,697,626
Gabon 3,353,444 6,964,948

21.2. Statutory Auditor fees
In 2018, the fees of the Statutory Auditor amounted to
28,750 euros.

The Management,

The Chartered Accountant,
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REPORT AND OPINION
OF THE STATUTORY
AUDIT BOARD




Dear Shareholders:

In compliance with the legal provisions, the Statutory
Audit Board sulbbmifs ifs report and issues its opinion
on the management report, balance sheetf, accounts
and proposal of application of netincome, which were
presenfed by the Board of Directors of CONDURIL -
Engenharia, S.A., regarding the financial year ended
on 31 December 2018.

REPORT

In the performance of its dufies, the Statutory Audit
Board had regular meetfings accompanying the social
activity and the evolution of CONDURIL - Engenharia,
S.A. business, watched and ensured the fulfilment of the
law and the articles of association, and it was informed
of the acts carried out by the Board of Directfors, which
has always clarified any situation when requested.

Also in the performance of its dufies, the Board carried
ouf a careful analysis of the management report
presenfed by the Board of Directors, the balance sheet,
the income statement, the cash flows and the changes
in equity for the financial year ended on 31 December
2018, and its annexe with the explanatory notes. These
documents are considered to be correct and offer a
clear picfure of the activity developed and the financial
position.

Within the framework of its competence, the Board was
informed of the works developed during the year by the
Audit Firm, obtained from it the necessary information
and  clarificafions, provided by ifs representafive,
required for the control of the official audit to the ofher
financial statements, was informed of the conclusions
and recommendations of the audif report sent fo the
Board of Direcfors, and proceeded fo the analysis of the
legal certification of accounts, whose confentfs deserve
the agreement of the Board.

The Board, still in the framework of its competence,
expresses its agreement regarding the accounfing
policies and the valuation criteria adopted.

As a result of the above, the Board considers that the
management report, balonce sheet, income statement,
cash flows and changes in equity allow, in the whole,
for a correct understanding of the financial situation of
ST ATUTQ RY CONDURIL - Engenharia, S.A., on 31 December 2018,
and fthe income stafement for the financial year ended
on that date, and, finally, it also considers that the legal

AU D | T B QA R D and statutory provisions were respected.
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As a condusion, the Board also thanks, along with the
Board of Directors, the Employees for their commitment
and dedication.

Therefore, the Statutory Audit Board issues the

OPINION

1. that the management report, balance sheet, accounts
and its notes for the financial year ended on 31 December
2018 are approved;

2. thatthe proposal of application of nefincome included
inthe management report, in the ferms presented by the
Board of Direcfors is approved.

Ermesinde, 13 March 2019

THE STATUTORY AUDIT BOARD

Ademar Américo Soares Paiva, President

Maria de Lourdes Lopes Chaves

JUlio Gales Ferreira Pinto
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Conduril
- Engenharia, S.A. (the Entity), which comprise the
balonce sheet on 31 December 2018 (which reflects a
total of 370,596,384 euros and fotal equity of 212,431,805
euros, including a nef income of 3,045,198 euros), the
profit and loss account by natfure, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the
year ended on that date, and the notfes affached fo
the financial statements, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial stfaferments affached present a
frue and proper view, in all material aspects, of the financial
position of Conduril - Engenharia, S.A. on 31 December
2018 and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year ended on that dafe, in accordance with the
Accounting Standards and Financial Reporting adopted in
Porfugal through the Accounting Standardisation System.

Grounds for the opinion

Ourauditwas performedinaccordancewiththe Infernational
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and further standards and
technical and ethical guidelines of the Portuguese Institute
of Statutory Auditors ("Ordem dos Revisores Cficiais de
Contas"). Our responsibiliies under those standards are
describedin the section "Auditor's responsibilities on the audit
of the financial statements” below. We are independent
from the Entity under the law and we meet all other ethical
requirements in accordance with the code of efhics of the
Portuguese Institute of Statutory Audifors.

We believe that the audiit evidence obtained is sufficient and
appropriate o provide a basis fo our opinion.

Responsibilities of the management body and the
supervisory body on the financial statements

The management body is responsible for:

LEG AI_ - the preparation of the finandal sfatements thaf
present a frue and proper view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Entity,

CE RT| |:|CAT| Q N in accordance with the Accounting Standards and
Financial Reporting adopted in Portugal through the
Accounting Standardisation Sysfem;

O I: / \CCO U N TS - the preparation of the management report under the

ferms of the applicable rules and regulations;
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- the creatfion and mainfenance of an infernal confrol
system, appropriafe fo enable the preparation of
financial staferments free of material misstatements due
fo fraud or errors;

- the adoption of accounting policies and criferia
adequate fo the circumstances; and

- the assessment of the Entfity's ability fo maintain ifs
continuity, disclosing, when applicable, the fopics that
could give rise fo justifiable doubt about the confinuity
of the acfivifies.

The supervisory body is responsible for supervising the
process of preparation and disclosure of the financial
information of the Entfity.

Auditor's responsibilities on the audit of the financial
statements

QOur responsibility is to obfain a reasonable assurance if
the financial statfements, as a whole, are free of material
misstaterments due fo fraud or errors and issue a report
where our opinion is expressed. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but it is nof a guaranfee
that an audit performed in accordance with the ISAs will
always defect a material misstaternent when it exists.
The misstatements may derive from fraud or errors, and
they are considered material if, alone or together, they
might reasonably be expected fo influence the economic
dedisions of the users faken based on those financial
stafements.

As part of an audit under the ISAs, we make professional
judgements and we mainfain professional scepficism

during the audit, and we also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of

- concluded on the appropriafion of use, by the

management body, of the going concern assumption
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, if there is
any material uncertainty relafed fo events or conditions
that could give rise to justifiable doubt about the Entfity's
ability fo contfinue its acfivities. If we conclude that
there is a material uncerfainty, we should poinf out
in our report the disclosures included in the financial
statements or, if those disclosures are not appropriate,
change our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained until the date of our report.
However, events or fufure conditions mary take the Entity
fo disconfinue ifs activifies;

- evaluate the presentation, structure and global

confenfs of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and if those financial staterments represent
the fransactions and events underlying in order fo
achieve an appropriate presentation;

- communicate to the governance officers, among ofher

subjects, the scope and planned schedule of the audit,
and the relevant conclusions of the audit, including any
significant gap of the infernal control identified during
the audit.

Our  responsibility also includes the verification  of
compliance of the information in the management report
with the financial statements.

the financial stafements, due fo fraud or errors; prepare
and perform audif procedures that address those risks;
and obtain sufficient and appropriate audif evidence to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting
a material misstatement due fo fraud is higher that
the risk of not defecting a material misstaterment due
fo errors, since fraud can involve collusion, falsification,
infentional omissions, false staternents or overlap of the
internal control;

- obfain an understanding of the infernal control relevant
fo the audit, with the aim of preparing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to
express an opinion about the efficiency of the infernal
control of the Entity;

- evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and reasonableness of accounting estimates and
respective disclosures made by the management body;
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About the management report

Compliant with arficle 451(3)(e) of the Portuguese
Companies Act, we believe that the management
report was prepared in accordance with the applicable
rules and regulations in force, ifs information is in line
with the financial statements audited and, based on
the knowledge and evaluation on the Enfity, we did nof
identify material misstafements.

Porto, 12 March 2019

HORWATH & ASSOCIADOS, SROC, LDA.
Represented by Ana Raquel Borges L. Esperanca Sismeiro (ROCT126)
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